
SOUTH WALES 
POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING

SUMMONS
10.30 am 
Tuesday, 11th December, 2018
Orbit Business Centre, 
Rhydycar Business Park, 
Merthyr Tydfil, CF48 1DL

Further information regarding this agenda is available from the 
Democratic Services Department at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Tel: (01685) 725284     Email: democratic@merthyr.gov.uk

A briefing session for Panel Members will be held from 10.00am – 
10.30am (approximately) prior to the arrival of any invited attendees or 

witnesses to the meeting.

A G E N D A
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is the host local authority for the South Wales 
Police and Crime Panel

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 3 - 8

4. Police & Crime Panel Home Office Grant (SJ) 
To consider the attached report 9 - 12

5. Presentation on the Public Service Centre 
To receive a presentation 

6. Commissioners Update Report 
To consider the attached report 13 - 28

7. Chief Constables Update Report 
To consider the attached report 29 - 38

8. Finance paper and presentation 
To consider the attached report 39 - 42

9. Early Action Together Canada Report 
To consider the attached report 43 - 46

10. Consultation and engagement strategy 
To consider the attached report 47 - 48

11. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor R Smith (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Chair)

Councillors:
B Bowen-Thomson (Cardiff Council), T Davies (Cardiff 
Council), R Lewis (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), P Rees 
(Neath Port Talbot CBC), C Richards (City and County 
of Swansea), R Young (Bridgend CBC), J Charles (Vale 
of Glamorgan CBC) and E Kirchner (City and County of 
Swansea)

Co-optees:
M Jehu (Vice-Chair)
M Jones

together with appropriate officers



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING

SOUTH WALES POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL MEETING

TUESDAY, 2ND OCTOBER, 2018

PRESENT: Councillor R Smith (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Chair)

Councillors:
B Bowen-Thomson (Cardiff Council), C Davies (Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC), T Davies (Cardiff Council), R Lewis (Rhondda Cynon Taf 
CBC), P Rees (Neath Port Talbot CBC), C Richards (City and 
County of Swansea), R Young (Bridgend CBC) and E Kirchner 
(City and County of Swansea)

Co-optees:
M Jones
M Jehu (Vice-Chair)

Outside Bodies:
Mr Alun Michael (Police and Crime Commissioner)
Mr Richard Lewis (Deputy Chief Constable)
Mr Umar Hussain (Chief Finance Officer)
Mr Lee Jones (Chief of Staff)
Mr Peter Curran (Chief Finance Officer)
Superintendent Esyr Jones
Jacqueline Trow (Quality of Service Manager)

Officers: 
S Jones (Senior Solicitor)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

Welcome

The Chair welcomed Councillor Erika Kerchner to her first Panel Meeting and advised that as 
confirmation from the Home Office was outstanding Councillor Kerchner could ask questions 
but could not vote.

1  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J 
Charles.

2  Declarations of Interest Mr Martyn Jones Declared a Personal Interest in Item Five 
– Commissioners Update Report – Stop- Search Dip 
Sampling as he is Chair of a Discussion Group in relation to 
Stop and Search.

Councillor Bernie Bowen-Thomson Declared a Personal 
Interest in Item Five – Commissioners Update Report – 
Safer Wales Charity. 

Mr Melvin Jehu Declared a Personal Interest in Item Seven 
– Presentation on the complaints received and the work 
carried out by the Professional Standards Department as 
his daughter is a Detective Sergeant in the South Wales 
Professional Standards Department.

3  Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s)

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Meeting held 5 June 2018 be accepted 
as a correct record.

4  Briefing Session The Chair referred to Complaints that had been received 
from Police Officers and Support Staff.

Simon Jones then outlined the remit of the Panel in relation 
to Complaints.

Debate then ensued on the matter and it was agreed by the 
Panel that a Letter be sent to the Police Federation outlining 
the remit of the Panel in relation to Complaints.

The Panel then further discussed in detail the issues that 
were to be considered at the Meeting.

5  Commissioners 
Update Report - Rt 
Hon Alun Michael

The Chair welcomed Alun Michael, Umar Hussain, Lee 
Jones, Peter Curran, Jacqueline Trow and Richard Lewis to 
the Meeting.

Alun Michael and the Officers referred the Committee to the 
Update report and gave detail on:

 Community Safety in Wales
 South Wales Police to increase the number of 

Officers trained to carry Taser

Page 4



 Facial Recognition
 Police Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) 

Programme
 Oversight, Scrutiny and Accountability
 Hate Crime Victim Satisfaction

The following Questions were then raised by the Panel and 
were responded to in detail:

 Mechanism for people outside the Police – 
Involvement of people in the Community

 Engagement with vulnerable groups
 Stop and Search – Gender balance
 Tasers

The Chair then thanked the Officers for the update to the 
Panel.

6  Update on Complaint 
changes paper and 
verbal update - Jackie 
Trow

Alun Michael referred the Panel to the ‘Action Plan for 
Complaints Matter’ report and welcomed comments from 
the Panel.

Jacqueline Trow then referred in detail to the Options 1, 2 
and 3.

Mr Michael advised that Option 1 had been opted for as it 
enhanced the work of Scrutiny and Professional Standards.

The following questions were then raised by the Panel:

 Impact on Force resources
 Partners in relation to Consultation 

The Chair also confirmed the remit of the Panel in relation 
to Complaints.

The Chair then thanked Jacqueline Trow for the update to 
the Panel.

7  Presentation on 
complaints received 
and the work carried 
out by the Professional 
Standards Department 
- Superintendent Esyr 
Jones

The Chair welcomed Superintendent Esyr Jones to the 
Meeting.

Superintendent Jones then made the following Presentation 
to the Panel:

 Structure of the Professional Standards Department
 Definition of a Complaint
 IOPC Statutory Guidance
 Demand graphs for the periods 2014/15, 2016/17 

and 2017/18
 New public complaint cases recorded by South 

Wales Police
 Graphs for the periods 2014/15, 2016/17 and 

2017/18 in relation to Referrals to the Independent 
Office for Police Conduct  

 Overview of the Case Management Process 
 Assessment Unit / Recording Decisions / Severity 

Assessment / Allocations / Outcomes / Appeal

Page 5



 Graph – Suspensions from Duty 2012 – 2018 to 
date

 Current Performance

Questions were then raised by the Panel on the 
Presentation and were responded to by Superintendent 
Jones:

The Chair then thanked Superintendent Jones for the 
Presentation and requested a print out of the Presentation. 

8  Paper and verbal 
update on 
Apprenticeship Levy  
explaining the work the 
Commissioner has 
been doing with regard 
to his lead role on the 
Partnership Council 
Finance Sub Group

Alun Michael and Richard Davies referred the Panel in 
detail to the ‘Apprenticeship Levy, Finance Sub Group 
Update’ and ‘Update Paper from Partnership Council for 
Wales in May 2018’ reports.

The following questions were then raised by the Panel:

 Is there any rationale from the Home Office
 Night Time Economy – Partnership working

A Member then recommended that a letter be sent to the 
Minister in relation to the disproportionate funding to help 
support people and communities

Alum Michael then stated that he welcomed this support.

Chair

Councillor R Smith vacated the Chair and left the Meeting at 
12.15 pm.

Mr Melvin Jehu Vice Chair took the Chair

Councillor R Young left the Meeting at 12.16 pm.

The Chair then suggested that as the year progressed if 
there were specific issues then there could be nominated 
Ambassadors from the Panel where those Members could 
be invited to observe.

Alun Michael advised that he would be happy to try and 
accommodate this.

9  Finance and Force 
Update presentation - 
Mr Umar 
Hussain/Deputy Chief 
Constable Richard 
Lewis

Alun Michael, Umar Hussain and Richard Lewis then gave 
the following Presentation on Challenges of Demand and 
the Impact of Austerity to the Panel:

 Police and Crime Plan 2018/21 – Delivering 
Together to keep South Wales Safe

 Our Priorities
 Shared Ambition 
 Chief Constable’s Delivery Plan 2018/21
 Mission – Keeping South Wales Safe
 Vision – To be the Best at Understanding and 

Responding to Our Communities Need
 Operational Priorities / Organisational Priorities
 Organisational Change Programme

Page 6



 Answered within Target Time 2013 to 2018 - 
Emergency SLA Rate / Non-Emergency SLA Rate

 Received Calls – All Emergency Lines / All Non-
Emergency Lines

 Recorded Crime – All Crime – Force – Monthly 
Graph

 Crime – National Comparisons
 Crime Changes and Impact by Offence Group
 County Lines – What is County Lines
 Drugs and Organised Crime
 County Lines Case Study
 Current situation in South Wales 
 County Line Hotspots
 Knife Crime Hotspots
 Knife Crime – Swansea and Cardiff
 South Wales Police recorded violence (With and 

Without Injury) in context
 Absence counts per employee 2017 -18
 Ranks and Grades
 Current Position – August 2018
 Overview of Work Currently Ongoing
 2017 -18 Financial Outturn
 National Audit Office
 Revenue Budget 2018 -19 – Journey so far
 Capital Budget 2018-19
 Capital Funding Comparison 2018 -19
 Comparative Position Reserves
 On target for Annual Savings up to 2018/19
 Scenario Planning / Current Assumption
 Funding Formula 
 CRS 2019 Development
 Summary

The Chair then thanked Alun Michael, Umar Hussain and 
Richard Lewis for the detailed Presentation to the Panel.

10  Appointment of Chief 
Finance Officer - Rt 
Hon Alun Michael

The Chair referred the Panel to the ‘Appointment of Chief 
Finance Officer’ report.

The Chair welcomed Peter Curran to the Meeting and 
invited Mr Curran to address the Panel.

Mr Curran then addressed the Panel and responded to 
questions raised by the Panel.

Mr Curran then left the Meeting.

After consideration by the Panel it was

Resolved that:

The Panel recommends to the Commissioner the 
appointment of Mr Peter Thomas Curran as Chief Finance 
Officer to the Police and Crime Commissioner for South 
Wales in accordance with Schedule 1 10 (4) of the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, Schedule 1 9 
(1) (b). 

Page 7



Mr Curran re-entered the Meeting and was congratulated 
on his appointment by the Chair on behalf of the Panel.

Alun Michael then updated the Panel in relation to Mr Geoff 
Petty and the Panel paid tribute to the Service of Mr Petty to 
the Panel and the South Wales Police.

Resolved that:

A letter be sent from the Panel to Mr Petty extending best 
wishes and thanking him for his Services. 

11  Report for Information - 
Annual Review- Lee 
Jones

The Chair referred the Panel to the ‘Annual Report 2017/19 
– A Summary of our Impact’ report.

Lee Jones then led the Panel through the report.

Resolved that:

The contents of the Report be received with no 
recommendations.

12  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 8



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

11th December 2018

Police & Crime Panel Home Office Grant

Purpose of the Report

To advise the Panel of the Home Offices position regarding the use and the 
current level of the Home Office Grant to Welsh Police & Crime Panels.

1.0 Background / Information

1.1 Members may be aware that Panels in England and Wales have 
recently formed the National Association of Police, Crime and Fire 
Panels which operates as a Special Interest Group within the Local 
Government Association. Members of the Panels in Wales have been 
trying to ascertain if they would be in breach of their grant agreement 
by using some of the funding they receive from the Home Office to fund 
their membership of this Association. 

1.2 In addition, to this specific issue Panels in Wales have via the Welsh 
Local Government Association (WLGA) expressed increasing concern 
regarding the level of funding received via the grant bearing in mind 
that there has been no uplift in funding since Panels first came into 
operation five years ago. Currently, for most Panels, the level of grant 
received only covers the cost of holding 3-4 meetings per annum in 
order to fulfil their statutory responsibilities in terms of scrutinising the 
budget and policing plan. Panels in Wales report that members are 
often not able to be reimbursed payment for attending additional 
meetings. It is also reported that budget constraints also negatively 
impact member development and training especially where there has 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



been a high turnover in Panel membership which has been the case in 
South Wales recently.

1.3 When the original grant levels were set, Panels were a new area of 
work however it is clear that some additional funding is required to 
support the effective work of PCPs.  This impacts more clearly in Wales 
where Panels are limited by the fact that host local authorities are 
prevented from using local authority funds to support the work of the 
Panels given the basis upon which they are established unlike the case 
in England where PCPs are Local Authority Joint Committees. 

1.4 In pursuance of the above the WLGA recently wrote to the Home Office 
seeking advice regarding the use of the Home Office Grant and raising 
concerns regarding the level of funding with the narrative set out above 
taken from the WLGA letter to the Home Office.

2.0 Home Office Response

2.1 A response has now been received from the Home Office which states 
that the Grant cannot be used to pay subscription fees to a 
representative association. In relation to the level of grant funding they 
believe the same to be “broadly appropriate”. The full response is 
attached as appendix 1.

3.0 Recommendation(s)

3.1 The Police and Crime Panel is asked to note the content of the 
response.

Simon Jones
Senior Solicitor
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Page 10



 

 
 
 

   

  Police Strategy & Reform 
Home Office 
2 Marsham Street 
London SW1P 4DF 
T 0207 7035 4848 
www.gov.uk/home-office 

Steve Thomas CBE 
Chief Executive 
Welsh Local Government Association 
Local Government House 
Drake Walk  
Cardiff CF10 4LG 
 
 
29 October 2018 

  

 
 
Dear Steve 
 
Re: POLICE AND CRIME PANEL GRANT 
 
Thank you for your letter of 24 September requesting advice on the use of Home Office 
grant funding and detailing your views on the suitability of current funding levels for Police 
and Crime Panels (PCPs). I apologise for the delay in providing a response. 
 
As you note in your letter, current proposals regarding the National Association of Police, 
Fire and Crime Panels involve PCPs paying an annual subscription to cover the 
management and administrative resource of such an association.  
 
The Home Office is committed to supporting and developing the role of PCPs in England 
and Wales. However, we consider that the use of grant funding to pay subscriptions to a 
national association is not within scope of the grant agreements we have in place with host 
authorities.  
 
Money paid by the Home Office must be used to maintain the PCP and enable it to carry 
out its statutory functions and responsibilities1. As you are aware, there is no statutory 
function or responsibility for PCPs to be a member of a representative body. Their 
functions are focused on scrutiny of the relevant PCC, and by definition, do not extend 
beyond the police area of the PCC.  
 
Furthermore, the grant agreements provide that funding is paid towards ‘eligible 
expenditure’, which expressly excludes activity to influence or attempt to influence the 
Government or Parliament, or the legislative process.  

                                                
1 As set out in sections 28 & 33, and Schedules 1, 5, and 8 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 

Act 2011 

Page 11



While Welsh Panels are constitutionally distinct from those established in England, the 
same statutory functions (and grant agreement terms) apply to both English and Welsh 
Panels. We consider that if a host authority (in England or Wales) were to pay a 
subscription to a national association of the type described in your letter, it would be in 
breach of grant agreement terms; and that the Home Office would be entitled to refuse to 
pay claims that are attributed to the national association. 
 
On the issue of PCP funding, I appreciate the feedback provided in your letter regarding 
Panel members’ concerns. We believe the level of funding currently administered to PCPs 
via the Home Office grant is broadly appropriate, covering annual running costs in addition 
to separate member allowances and translation support. However, we acknowledge that 
there is some variation in the work of PCPs generally; and the use made of grant funding 
more specifically. Officials are currently scoping an exercise to be undertaken later this 
year which will aim to assess how scrutiny is being carried out in different areas, and to 
establish the wider support needs of PCPs (with particular reference to those panels taking 
on responsibility for fire scrutiny). 
 
Thank you for your kind invitation to attend a future meeting of Chairs and Vice Chairs – 
my team would be very glad to engage with your office as we continue to develop our 
understanding of local scrutiny needs. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Lauren Diffey 
Head of PCC Policy, Scrutiny and Accountability 

Page 12



1

Keeping South Wales Safe
An end of Year assessment of delivery 

and the opportunities & challenges
This is the sixth year in which I have come to the Police and Crime Panel in 
December to offer a review of the current state of South Wales Police in advance 
of the significant decisions, which have to be made in January. 

As happens each year, we are waiting for decisions from the Government 
because until the level of the Police Grant is announced the level of financial 
uncertainty is high.  Yet, by the end of January each year, I have to present to 
the Panel clear recommendations as to the Budget and Precept for the coming 
year along with the Police and Crime Plan, which sets out what, we intend to 
achieve.  

This year the level of uncertainty is higher than ever and while setting out the 
financial challenges is important, it means nothing without a full understanding 
of the challenges we face and what we are trying to achieve. For that reason, I 
have decided to set out for the Panel in narrative form what I believe to be the 
most important considerations as we look to the future.

My responsibilities as Police and Crime Commissioner include….. 

 the appointment (or removal) of the Chief Constable, 
 setting the overall direction of South Wales Police in the Police and Crime 

Plan, 
 providing the Chief Constable with the resources to run an effective police 

service for South Wales, 
 holding the Chief Constable to account on behalf of the public including 

performance, standards and integrity, 

 holding the local Criminal Justice System to account -  by working  with 
partners in the fields of Community Safety and Criminal Justice, to co-operate 
with the other Police and Crime Commissioners in Wales to formulate and 
implement crime and disorder strategies across Wales

 seeking to make the communities of South Wales safe by exercising 
leadership in the vast areas of public service indicated by the “and Crime” 
part of the title.

 And obtaining the views of the Communities within South Wales on 
policing the local area

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 

The Chief Constable has operational responsibility for the policing of South 
Wales, and my Oath of Office includes the significant responsibility to defend 
the independence of decision-making by the police officers who respond to the 
daily challenges of keeping us safe.

As the Police & Crime Commissioner I have a statutory duty and electoral 
mandate to hold the police to account on behalf of the public.

Those clear and separate responsibilities are not always obvious because they 
are interdependent.  There is a very clear line, and we know where it runs, but I 
have often described it as a “permeable membrane” because unless we exercise 
our separate responsibilities together and with mutual respect, neither of us can 
successfully serve the people of South Wales.  That is the reason why the 
principles of Co-operation run like a golden thread throughout the Police and 
Crime Plan for both our internal and external work.

An important part of the relationship for the Commissioner and Chief Constable 
is clarity between us – and for those who work for us - about where the line is 
drawn between the operational independence of the Chief Constable and the 
duty on the Commissioner to hold the Chief Constable to account in the exercise 
of his functions.

This paper sets out my assessment of the current state of play and the 
challenges we face, while a separate paper from the Chief Constable provides a 
summary of the operational challenges.  

At the Panel meeting we will also summarise the financial challenges although 
the detail will depend on the contents of the Police Grant Statement which has 
not yet been made and may possibly be delayed until after the Panel meeting. 
The papers provide a brief summary of progress on the Mid-Term Financial Plan 
– and a reminder of the contents of the full document that has already been 
before the Panel – but we will offer a presentation on the financial position at 
the meeting itself, by which time we hope that the Police Grant Statement will 
have been made.  

For the moment, here is the situation in which we find ourselves.

South Wales Police has faced massive challenges over recent years.  

 Roughly a third of the money that used to come in the Police Grant from 
the Home Office has been cut.  

 Capital funding is virtually non-existent - and the need to fund necessary 
capital projects from revenue is effectively another significant cut.  

 Demand on police services continues to increase although almost 90% of 
that demand by volume has little to do with combating crime.

Page 14



 

Page | 3 

 There is still no recognition of the added demand for the policing of the 
Capital City – which as the Panel knows is far above the level of demand 
in many larger cities and is both a success story and a significant call on 
resources 

 Performance is high as demonstrated both by HMI Reports and by our 
own monitoring systems, including a continuing high level of victim 
satisfaction. 

 The Force is exemplary in responding to vulnerable people, mental health 
issues, and being the “Agency of Last Resort”, especially during night-time 
and at weekends or holiday periods. 

 Other agencies – including local government and the NHS – struggle with 
resources, and so the police have increasingly become the “Agency of First 
Resort”.  

Much of the increase in demand comes in aspects that are not visible to the 
public and are highly demanding, including online exploitation and fraud, human 
trafficking, domestic violence and the abuse of children and young people.  So 
visible policing has to be purposeful – with our officers and PCSOs on our streets 
“walking with a purpose” and maximising 2-way communication with the public. 
That is what the current review of Neighbourhood Policing in South Wales is all 
about, with a focus on engagement, prevention, early intervention and 
empowerment.

While the impact of County Lines has not undermined general public confidence 
to date, and may have little impact on most of the public, it reflects a nasty and 
violent world of exploitation, greed and violence which is now increasing the 
pressures on operational policing in a number of ways.

Meeting these demands requires a high level of energy and professionalism, and 
we should be very proud of the commitment shown by officers and staff – but 
that comes at a price including the stress on individuals, the stretch of resources 
resulting from illness and injury within small teams and a significant amount of 
rest days not taken (the outstanding re-rostered rest days as of November 2018 
being 9,400 days).

Against that background, it is extraordinary that the Police and South Wales - 
from the Chief Constable through the ranks to our Police Constables and PCSOs 
and staff - remain so positive.  The extent to which people go above and beyond 
the call of duty is also extraordinary, as is the continued application of common 
sense and good humour in circumstances of high pressure and stress. That 
speaks both of good leadership and of commitment that is both personal and 
collective.

Page 15



 

 

A simple example is the recent growth in our extensive network of South Wales 
Police Youth Volunteers (144 – across 12 hubs) and increasing numbers of 
Special Constables (135) and Police Support Volunteers (233) and Independent 
Custody Visitors (32) who provide an enormously important service to the public 
of South Wales. Those developments have been achieved without additional 
resources although as the Policy Lead for Volunteering on behalf of the 
Association of Police & Crime Commissioners I am working with Chief Constable 
Sean Sawyer as the Lead for the National Police Chiefs Council to find a 
sustainable way of providing a central resource to support such developments.

Not only does this demonstrate optimism and enthusiasm on an epic scale, but 
shows the professionalism of the team is recognised across our communities 
and on the national stage. 

I have lost count of the times I have had comments about the positive attitude 
of our officers, summed up by one Police Federation representative – a 
Metropolitan Police officer who had experience of working alongside our 
officers in Hackney during the riots in 2011 - who told me “Your guys are 
different - they talk to people.”

And it’s reflected in the crime statistics.  In terms of the levels of crime recorded 
in the Home Office figures and in the public experience of crime as reflected by 
the Crime Survey of England and Wales, it is worth emphasising both the 
reduction in most crime types over the past 30 years.  

Also worthy of note is the remarkable and increasing convergence between 
what is reported to the police in South Wales and the actual experience of the 
public in South Wales.  

South Wales Police has been an exemplar in terms of developing ways of using 
new technology to enable police officers to spend more time in action and less 
time in the station or on administration. It’s been used to improve our response 
in the Public Service Centre which now takes all our calls. 

Another success story has been the use of “Facial Recognition” to identify 
wanted criminals at big events and to protect our children.  But that has not 
happened by using the technology without serious consideration.  The Joint 
Ethics Committee - appointed jointly by the Chief Constable and myself - has 
scrutinised these developments from an early stage as have three separate 
external Commissioners (the Surveillance Commissioner, the Biometrics 
Commissioner and the Information Commissioner) and the development has 
been escalated to my Strategic Board for scrutiny.  I can therefore say with -
confidence that use of the technology sits within the requirements of civil 
liberties as well as the priorities of keeping people safe.

Page 16



 

Page | 5 

As another example, the Chief Constable has decided to double the number of 
officers able to use Tasers.  I scrutinised that decision carefully and my 
conclusion was straightforward, based on the evidence.  The use of Tasers has 
been shown to reduce harm to police officers, to members of the public, and 
indeed to individuals being restrained.  When you consider the cost of injury 
through a failure to calm a situation down – cost to the NHS, to the costs of 
prosecution, perhaps to the cost of imprisonment, the cost of injuries to police 
officers, members of the public and even the person being restrained - the 
conclusion is clear and I endorsed the Chief Constable’s decision.

So there is no doubt that the service delivered to the people of South Wales is 
of an extremely high standard and is being delivered very efficiently given that 
it is being achieved on such reduced resources.

It is also clear that public confidence is high in South Wales.

Another consideration is the economic value of policing.  The economic analysis 
shows that policing is not just an activity that should be measured in terms of 
how efficiently incidents are dealt with. Policing makes a significant contribution 
to the health and well-being of our communities – and specifically policing 
makes a significant contribution to the economy

Currently there are few ways in which other income can be obtained by the 
police and that is understandable in terms of a wish for the police to be 
independent and publicly accountable rather than seeking income in ways that 
become more and more obscure as happens in some countries.  In recent weeks 
there has been a suggestion in Cardiff that organisers of events should pay 
towards cleansing the streets.  The contribution to the police from major events 
has been constrained through the decision in a case at Leeds Crown Court but I 
would argue that the contribution to events and the economy needs to be 
recognised in some way which goes beyond the current contributions through 
the Business Improvement District, welcome though that is.  Either this needs 
to be accounted for through the Police Grant or in some other way.

And the contribution of South Wales Police to Prevention - particularly through 
“Early Intervention and Prompt Positive Action” – must be recognised as 
outstanding.  The words used both in the Police and Crime Plan and in the Chief 
Constables Delivery Plan really are being turned into action across South Wales.

This is not an “add-on” to policing but is what Sir Robert Peel identified as the 
first priority for the Police - “The first priority for the Police is to prevent and 
reduce crime – success in policing is demonstrated by the absence of crime not 
the presence of activity”.  

Page 17



 

 

Of course, Sir Robert’s “first priority” is not reflected well in films or on television 
where the plot of a story requires action laced with violence and intimidation, 
but the same applies to films and television programmes about the NHS.  In so 
many ways, in the real world, “Prevention is better than Cure” and it is vital for 
us to take a Public Health approach to preventing harm through crime as well as 
through illness.  The ground-breaking research by Public Health Wales 
quantified the impact of common causes and we are now making a significant 
difference together by tackling those causes and ameliorating their impact. 
Work that will rarely hit the headlines but it is crucial to keeping South Wales 
safe. 

Having said that, the need for vigorous intervention by the police when bad 
things happen will always be necessary.  We celebrate the courage and 
commitment of police officers in our annual Awards Ceremony and there are 
day-to-day examples of bravery which never cease to amaze me.  It is just that 
if we fail to prevent those things that can be prevented, in the very near future 
the police will cease being able to cope with the inexorable escalation in demand 
and we will be returned to the experience of the 1990s when the police were 
dealing with a Snowdonia of crime while the public were experiencing the 
Himalayas.  Every day our officers deal with the reality of crime, disorder and 
anti-social behaviour, which will always be a part of policing, and the challenge 
is to get the balance right between prevention and response.  The data tells us 
that we can be proud of having judged that balance correctly in recent years, 
despite the tough financial climate and need to do more in terms of prevention 
to reduce demand.

When Matt Jukes took up the mantle of Chief Constable last January he talked 
about the importance of Prevention.  In particular, we have shown the value of 
our partnership work with Public Health Wales, with operational officers and 
PCSOs the first to reflect the value to them in their daily work of understanding 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and how to ameliorate their impact 

Matt Jukes chairs the advisory group for the Welsh Government’s ACEs Hub, 
which is located in Public Health Wales, while I and Emma Wools with our team 
have led the work that has led to ground-breaking progress through the 
£6.8milllion Police-led ACEs programme in Wales (Early Action Together). This 
has enabled us to be truly effective and joined up with each other and with our 
partners.

Despite the reduced resources, there has been success in tackling the impact of 
County Lines - the activity across Wales and England which has brought 
organised crimes onto our streets along with an increase in knife crime and the 
exploitation of vulnerable people in our communities.  It’s a big challenge and a 

Page 18



 

Page | 7 

significant element of criminal activity to deal with but it is being met and where 
challenges have become obvious - such as the high level of drug-related deaths 
and amputations in Swansea and Neath Port Talbot - leadership has been shown 
by police teams and our partners through joint meetings of the two Public 
Services Boards and the declaration of a “Critical Incident”.

Achieving the concept of joint work by public services – with an aspiration to 
deliver Rhodri Morgan’s concept of “a single public service” - still seems a long 
way off but there is undoubtedly greater progress in Wales than elsewhere and 
we are contributing significantly to that working South Wales as well as leading 
many All Wales initiatives.

The examples are significant in themselves:

 The panel is aware of the considerable partnership work undertaken 
between South Wales Police and Public Health Wales not least on 
developing strategies to tackle and ameliorate the impact of Adverse 
Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and through the Violence Surveillance 
Reports that gives a regular update on incidents based on the experience 
at A&E.  

 This is now led to the major award for the development of police led aces 
work across Wales and the interest shown as referred to elsewhere on 
the agenda at the World Conference of Law Enforcement and Public 
Health

 This has been taken further as a result of our work with Youth Offending 
Teams across South Wales - using Enhanced Case Management which had 
been developed for the Youth Justice Board for Wales, along with the 
application of an ACEs Lens to the behaviour of first or second-time 
offenders

 We have made a significant contribution to the work undertaken as a 
result of the Cabinet Secretary for Communities and Local Government, 
Alun Davies AM, and a Junior Minister at the Ministry of Justice 
commissioning work on two Blueprints - on Women Offenders and on 
youth offending.  The work is being seen as of great practical value by 
police officers at every level as well as by partner agencies

 The Commissioner and the Chief Constable jointly commissioned the 
development of a joint strategy for tackling violence against women and 
girls which is being refreshed as we speak.

 Significant work is being done on equalities and for fairness in recruiting, 
with particular emphasis on significant recruitment of women and from 
the black and minority ethnic groups across South Wales, and 
subsequently moving on to retention and promotion.

Page 19



 

 

Here is the current dilemma:  Are we to abandon all these initiatives in the 
knowledge that they are helping to reduce offending, that they are making a 
contribution to reducing demand on the police, that they reduce the number of 
people who become victims, and that they reduce the impact on local 
communities?

The result of losing a third of our Police Grant income in the past few years is 
that any future cuts have to be reflected in further reducing the number of 
people who are working to keep South Wales safe.  But it doesn’t make sense to 
allow crime to rise again or to stop ameliorating the impact of alcohol and 
substance misuse, or ACEs or the other initiatives which are reducing demand 
on other services too.

To take just one example, we contribute £43,333 to the HelpPoint in Swansea 
which makes an enormous important contribution to the night-time economy 
of Swansea and the safety of its citizens and visitors.  

A Health Economic Evaluation showed that the saving in a year was £60,293 for 
South Wales Police - primarily through police officers being able to be back on 
the street keeping the peace instead of looking after vulnerable person while 
waiting for an ambulance - while the saving for the NHS was nearly £600,000 - 
£414,843 for ABMU Health Board through diversion from A&E and £180,224 for 
the Welsh Ambulance Service Trust through reduced ambulance calls.  Would it 
make sense to stop paying our £43,333 in order to have an additional two thirds 
of a police officer to cope with the additional demand placed on our team?

We can measure the benefits instead in terms of savings for others – in 12 
months

 1,300 ambulance journeys saved
 1,100 admissions to A&E prevented.

Add to that the value of the training for door staff in vulnerability.  

 How do you cost the value of a woman not raped or and not injured in an 
assault, and would we be able to live with our consciences after 
withdrawing initiatives of this sort?

Or consider the interventions with first-time offenders in the 18-25 age group

 It enables earlier interventions with savings further down the line for a 
number of agencies

 In particular, the Clerk to the Magistrates said he could see the impact of 
the programme “…..because it’s saving me a court a week in Cardiff”.

Page 20



 

Page | 9 

And while it is more difficult to quantify benefits in terms of mental health, there 
is no doubt that the Police Service is depended on and valued for the sensitive 
response our officers frequently provide.  It is arguable that having mental 
health practitioners – which police funds will pay for because of the operational 
benefits to policing – will provide even greater benefit to the NHS. 

It is a simple fact that a failure to undertake preventative work, or a failure to 
intervene early, or a failure to work with partners on a “Public Health approach 
to reducing crime and disorder, or worse of all a failure on all three, would lead 
to even more increasing demand with which we would find it even more difficult 
to cope.

There are those in the past who would have said that this is not the work of the 
police but our view is that it is a central role of the police with partners to keep 
people safe and to keep the peace.

Earlier, I quoted the words of Sir Robert Peel whose central principle was that 
“the first responsibility of the police is to prevent crime” or to put it another way 
success in policing is measured by the absence of crime not the presence of 
activity. This part of our work is inextricably linked with that of our partners in 
the NHS and in local government, and that partnership work is a necessary part 
of policing rather than an add-on.  Indeed, it enables effective policing.  We 
believe that the evidence shows that we make a contribution to reducing or 
holding in demand for our partners and that the needs to be a greater sharing 
of that responsibility by all agencies and not just some. 

I am currently encouraged to think that the tectonic plates may be shifting - for 
example through the development of collaboration between Bridgend and  
Cwm Taf Public Services Boards following the change in Health Board boundaries  
and the joint work to tackle significant harm to the public in Swansea and Neath 
Port Talbot.  

The other key element of our policing priorities is being at the heart of our 
communities across South Wales.  That is why we have been working so hard to 
increase representation from all our communities amongst our officers and staff 
- to reflect the communities served by South Wales Police - and to live up to the 
South Wales Police slogan - to be “The Best at Understanding our Communities”.  
Or as Sir Robert Peel put it “the police are the community and the community 
are the police”. It’s not an optional extra it’s at the heart of policing and at the 
heart of our expectation of our Police Service.  

Neil Basu made the connection succinctly for us when talking about the impact 
of terrorism and organised crime, that local policing is essential to success in 
these major aspects of police work as well as the skills and techniques and 

Page 21



 

 

courage of those who tackle serious crime and terrorist activity. There not 
alternatives - they are interdependent.

So to those who suggest that we could be forced to abandon neighbourhood 
policing - and there are forces that have been tempted down that road - I say 
that you might as well describe it as a decision to abandon policing itself.  

Neighbourhood policing is the essential element in British Policing and 
exemplified at the highest possible level within South Wales Police. If you 
withdraw from being at the heart of every neighbourhood you inevitably create 
“No Go areas” and we have seen in many parts of the world what I would call 
“external policing” or policing from outside the community.  We have some 
experience of that in the 1980s and I saw an extreme form of the consequences 
in Sarajevo in 1997.

That is why I strongly support and endorse the approach that has been taken by 
the Chief Constable to review, to improve, to make more efficient, and to make 
more effective the  model of Neighbourhood Policing for South Wales and I 
believe that the Panel will welcome the outcome of that work when it is 
concluded and can be presented here.

Nevertheless, this year we face a particular challenge.

Despite all the positives, the pressure on our officers and staff day in day out is 
enormous and while there are still savings that will be made, the scope for major 
cuts in expenditure is now well behind us.  Further cuts in the Police Budget will 
lead to loss of people and people are our key resource.

I have often quoted the fact that we had 3,400 officers at best during the last 20 
years but in recent times the numbers have been just above and just below 
2,800 even with the increase in the precept that I have recommended in an 
attempt to balance the books and maintain a safe level of policing.

Two years ago the then Chief Constable Peter Vaughan and I explained our 
shared aspiration to increase the number of officers available to deal with 
vulnerable people and Internet -related demand.  The Chief Constable has 
delivered on that aspiration. However, the precept resource that I put in place 
has suffered attrition, as we have had to find the £1 million necessary to meet 
the requirements of the Apprenticeship Levy and the impact of unfunded 
increases in salaries.  I will be the first to say that police officers and police staff 
deserve an increase above 1% they were held to for several years - but when the 
Government finally relented and doubled the increase it did so without 
providing the money to pay for it.  

Page 22



 

Page | 11 

After several years of seeking to limit increases in the precept, the Home Office 
last year encouraged greater use of the precept to provide the resources 
necessary for policing.   At our recent policing summit in London, the Home 
Secretary acknowledged that people will expect any increase in the local precept 
to be spent on an increase in local policing - and yet is the some statements 
appear to suggest that the government may expect the precept to be used to fill 
a black hole that results from Treasury decisions to walk away from the black 
hole in the finance of police pensions.

I hope that when we have the details of the Police Grant Settlement I will be 
able to report the Panel that I was too pessimistic but at present the reality we 
face is problematic.

This year we face an unprecedented situation.  

In Wales, we are still uncertain about the way in which the Police Graduate 
Apprenticeship scheme will be paid for.  

 In the current financial year Welsh Government and the Home Office 
between them provided the £1 million that was necessary to start 
introducing the scheme.  But there is no certainty about the long-term way 
in which this money will be provided although we live in hope (rather than 
faith or trust) that it will be found one way or another.  The impact on us 
would be considerable if not.

But the greatest hammer blow is the pension’s deficit that has been identified 
by the Treasury.  A couple of weeks ago the Prime Minister tried to tell us that 
we should have been able to plan to pay the bill because the Treasury had 
indicated that there was a gap to be filled.  Her response in a Parliamentary 
Answer is disingenuous to say the least.  

 First, there is real pain for each £million that is taken out of the already 
reduced funding available to the police.

 Second, losing £1 million or £3 million or £10 million from a much-reduced 
budget is painful even if you knew it was coming.

 Third, and most significant, if a massive new burden is imposed on top of 
all predicted challenges to pay for something for which you have never 
been responsible, I fail to see you how that can be planned for or achieved.

Let me explain that third point.  

The way in which the so-called “Unfunded” police pensions are paid for until 
now is that you take the pension contributions paid by currently serving officers 
and add the employer’s contribution for those serving officers.  That will not be 
enough to pay our current pensioners, so it leaves a gap in the amount needed 

Page 23



 

 

to pay the current pensioners this year.  That gap has always been funded by the 
Treasury through the Home Office.  So if the gap has widened the demand on 
the Treasury and the Home Office goes up.  It’s reasonable to expect that the 
Treasury and the Home Office would plan to meet this increase in their 
obligations.  Indeed, one might say to the Prime Minister that if anybody knew 
the gap was coming it was the Treasury.  

But when they identified the problem in an area that they have previously 
funded they failed to mention their intention to avoid meeting their obligations 
and their intention to dump the problem on the local Police budget.

The scale of the problem is significant.  We are told that the figure for South 
Wales Police in the next financial year will be between £3 million and £4 million.  
We are told that the following year the figure will go up to £10 million or more.  
On top of that will come whatever additional sums are needed to deal with the 
knock-on effect of salary increases and other developments.

One reason that the gap is increasing is that there are now fewer Police Officers 
paying their current contributions - but it’s not our choice to have fewer officers.  
It’s the effect of Treasury decisions.

To me it is absolutely crystal clear that the Treasury has responsibility for the 
gap, responsibility for the increase in the gap, and responsibility for dealing with 
any shortfall.  Transferring that responsibility to the local Police and Crime 
Commissioner is effectively a tax on all the residents of South Wales because 
there is nowhere else to go other than the Precept when the Government fails 
to meet its duties to give us the tools to do the job.

There’s one final complication.  At this stage I cannot quantify the impact of 
Brexit except to the say that it will be significant.   I find it extraordinary that the 
debate over the European Union has focused only on trade and the economy - 
important though they are - when it was always about peace and security.  We 
were offered the statistic recently that the EU’s Schengen Database was 
accessed 53 million times from the UK by law enforcement officers last year. 

I won’t develop that thought now although I have spoken at length about it in 
recent weeks, but it is important to underline the prosaic point that we will 
never again have a Brit at the head of Europol, that use of the European Arrest 
Warrant is what changed the world from the one that many of us in this room 
will remember, when serious criminals and gangsters from the UK would be 
featured on the front pages of our Sunday newspapers sunning themselves on 
the Costa del Sol because they couldn’t be touched.  The police will work 
pragmatically to make the best of what emerges, and let’s hope that goodwill 
and common sense can be to the fore in both the UK and in the European Union, 

Page 24



 

Page | 13 

but let’s not deny that a game of Russian Roulette is being played with the safety 
and security of our citizens.

Police Officers will do what they always do which is to live in the real world and 
make the best of the situation in which we find ourselves.  But we are not making 
it any easier for them.  And let’s not fool ourselves into thinking that the Brexit 
choice comes without a price - and potentially a very heavy price.

If we add together the unavoidable challenges and costs - and if we ask what the 
impact will be if the Home Office is unable to fill the Pensions Black Hole both 
this year and next year – it’s worth understanding the impact in simple terms.

The total additional cost of the pensions bill is estimated at £3m to £4m in the 
coming year.  The following year – and subsequent years - the bill goes up to 
£10m plus the impact of wage increases and other inflationary or organisational 
pressures.  

Just to give an idea of the scale of the financial challenge, each £1million in terms 
of a cut or extra cost is equivalent to the cost of employing 18 Police Officers or 
29 PCSOs.  And the money raised from adding 1% on the Police Precept is 
£1.1million. 

At the same time, I have no desire at all to impose increased costs on our Council 
Tax Payers in South Wales.

Potentially we face a very uncomfortable dilemma and that is why I want today 
to share the facts of that dilemma with the Panel, not just by describing the cold 
facts of police finances – which are set out in the financial reports to the Panel - 
but by giving a full account of the choices and challenges we face.  It is my duty 
to do all I can to keep our people safe, to prevent and reduce harm, and to 
provide the Chief Constable and his team with the resources they need to 
provide the best possible police service to South Wales.  The Chief Constable’s 
operational assessment is set out very clearly in his report to the Panel.

Over the next few weeks we will be working to refresh the Police and Crime Plan 
for which I have legal responsibility, but which is drawn up in co-operation with 
the Chief Constable.  The Chief Constable will be finalising the delivery plan and 
looking again at the practical implications of the challenges faced by operational 
policing.  There will be work to refresh the Force Management Statement, which 
in South Wales reflects the Police & Crime Plan and the Delivery Plan but which 
is intended by the Chief HM Inspector of Police, Sir Tom Winsor, to help us by 
drawing out in a standard format the efficiency of the Force and the resources 
required to do the job effectively.   

Page 25



 

 

Before we move on it’s worth asking what this year’s Force Management 
Statement told us here in South Wales.  A summary is provided in the papers for 
the meeting of the Panel and it is both encouraging and challenging.

In January I will present the Police and Crime Plan for 2019 to 2022 for 
consideration by the Panel, along with the Chief Constable’s Delivery Plan and 
my recommendation on the Police Precept.  Having spelt out the size of the gap 
that we could be faced with, unless the Treasury relents, and accepting that we 
must squeeze out any further efficiencies that can be a squeezed out of the 
system, we also have to avoid putting the safety and security of our citizens to 
put at risk.

We have heard rumours that Forces are being made to narrow down to “core 
policing”, but we have seen enough in the past, when the volume of crime was 
such that the police could not cope, that things get out of hand very quickly and 
community safety deteriorates very rapidly.  Now we are not just maintaining 
the standard of prevention on which Sir Robert Peel set such store, we are 
exceeding expectations and exciting interest within the UK and beyond.

Recently I attended the World Conference on Law Enforcement and Public 
Health, at which we presented a briefing on the work that Policing in Wales is 
undertaking with partners through the Early Action Together programme for 
which we won £6.8 million from the Police Transformation Fund.  A report on 
that conference is also on the agenda for the Panel.  We are determined to use 
that money well and embed a radical, new and effective approach here in Wales.  
It started with the pilot programme undertaken by South Wales Police with 
Public Health Wales in Maesteg.  It would be madness to step back from an 
approach which is preventative by its nature and shown to work to the benefit 
of everyone.

At the same time, there is a need to improve effectiveness in terms of every 
aspect of policing, and again South Wales Police is seen as an exemplar.

The Inspectorate (HMIC) for South Wales Police gave the following graded 
assessments in 2017/18:

PEEL Efficiency Good

PEEL Effectiveness Good

Legitimacy Good

At the present moment all I can say is that we retain our ambition to maintain 
and ever improve the standard of policing across South Wales through the high 
quality interventions that prevent crime happening and keep our people safe.

Page 26



 

Page | 15 

It will not be enough to simply hope that the Annual Police Grant Settlement is 
one that delivers our aspirations and those that have been expressed by the 
Home Secretary and the Minister of State for the Police.  The facts and choices 
spelt out in this paper have been put consistently to the Home Office by 
Commissioners and by Chief Constables – and what we need is a response that 
is fair and proportionate.

In an ideal world the Police Grant Statement would contain figures that would 
allow us to deliver on the expectations of the public of South Wales - but we 
have to think ahead and consider now what our response might be if it does not.  
At the time of writing this report, we can still live in hope but by the time the 
Panel meets, we may know more and I look forward to a well-informed 
discussion with the Panel.

With respect…………………..

Police & Crime Commissioner for South Wales

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Chief Constable’s Report 

Police and Crime Panel
Tuesday 11th December 2018

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 

 
2

CHIEF CONSTABLES’ REPORT TO THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

DECEMBER 2018

1. INTRODUCTION BY THE CHIEF CONSTABLE

I am in no doubt that our communities deserve the very best from policing and if we are to 
achieve that, resources matter. The rigour with which we have applied ourselves to reforming 
the organisation and the support of the Police and Crime Commissioner (endorsed by the 
Police and Crime Panel), has secured our current resources. Local council tax makes a 
significant contribution to that overall funding but still represents a modest weekly 
investment by households considering the breadth of services provided. Nonetheless, I am 
very aware of what every pound means to many families in our villages, towns and cities and 
we will always treat their contribution with great care.

My colleagues in the Force face not only the challenge of meeting the needs of a capital city 
(without any additional funding) but also of responding to two-thirds of Wales’ most deprived 
communities. The level of drugs use and serious crime in some of our communities also 
demands the intensive application of resources. As well as evolving threats from cyber-crime 
and online exploitation, I am determined that we continue to increase our impact on enduring 
threats, such as violence against women and girls. The number of crimes of sexual violence 
reported to us has doubled in the last three years, reflecting an increased confidence in 
reporting to the police, and we are determined to seek justice for victims.

Our results show what can be achieved and what is in jeopardy if resources are stripped out. 
At present the Force achieves a positive outcome (identifying and taking action against a 
suspect) in more cases than our most of comparable Forces. Against measures for taking 
against suspects in robbery, sexual violence and violent crimes leading to injury, we are in the 
top three forces in England and Wales. I have sustained my predecessor’s determination that 
we should serve these victims to the highest possible standard and our journey since 2007 
from the worst performing forces in the country to one of the best, is one that I am 
determined to safeguard. Ultimately, as I set out when taking office, I want to see us 
preventing people becoming victims in the first place. We are a leading force (and so have 
attracted funding to Wales) in relation to intervening early to prevent children and young 
people becoming victims and offenders. 

We are doing all of this after taking £51m of recurring costs from the organisation, principally 
by losing more than 1,100 people from the workforce. The extent to which we can cut further, 
without fundamentally compromising our service to communities is a deep concern to me. 
Any reduction in our resources – the types of impacts that have been seen in Forces where 
the weighting towards central government grant is even greater – would mean much of the 
good work that has come to characterise South Wales Police would have to stop. Our capacity 
to pursue justice for victims and our ability to prevent victimisation in the first place would be 
diminished. Some of the neighbourhood policing that we have preserved (and others have 

Page 30



 

 
3

been forced to cut) would be in real jeopardy. On the current trajectory of resources reducing 
in real-terms, some of this vital work will have to be reconsidered and our visible presence in 
communities (amongst the highest in the country) may have to be reduced. As a separate 
paper highlights, the potential gap in funding amounts to (in whatever combination) 
hundreds of police officer, staff and community support officer roles. 

This is not a question of police funding in isolation. Policing is being called upon to close gaps 
in the provision of other services, stretching our resources and meaning that up to 9 out of 
10 calls to the police is not a report of crime – with many calls relate to unmet social needs 
and mental ill-health. If the police are to respond to emerging online threats while 
maintaining our presence on the streets, we have to focus on doing the work that most 
requires our unique powers and capabilities. As I have described, I hope we will bring that 
unique contribution to stopping harm in the first place and not just responding to it by being 
a powerful force for peacekeeping in the lives of individuals, families and communities. 

And we want to do this in partnership – in fact, that is crucial. But we cannot do the work that 
others are struggling to do without some impact on our core role of preventing and detecting 
crime. The report that follows is frank about these challenges but underlines the fundamental 
quality of service that my colleagues and I still take pride in. Whilst the remarkable quality of 
our people is enough for me to maintain my optimism, the current position of escalating 
demand from a range of complex sources combined with the continued reduction in finances 
presents an unsustainable position for the years ahead. 

Having held leadership roles throughout this period of unprecedented austerity, I have seen 
our organisation change and in many respects improve and of course, I do not look to funding 
alone to relieve these pressures. A raft of other ongoing reforms are in place, as well as 
earnest discussions with partners. However, there is no escape from the difficult choices that 
lie ahead and the risk of enduring financial pressure clearly compounds these. The continued 
focus of the Police and Crime Panel to these issues is much appreciated.

M J Jukes QPM
Prif Gwnstabl  - Chief Constable
Heddlu de Cymru – South Wales Police

Page 31



 

 
4

2. FORCE PERFORMANCE AND CHALLENGES

For the first time, in 2018 all police forces in England and Wales were required to provide the 
HM Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (this latter part being 
applicable to England only) with a Force Management Statement to describe the demands on 
the organisation and the condition of its plans and resources in response. Extracts from this 
statement are provided below and reflect the performance of the Force and the challenges 
we face. They include work led by the Police & Crime Commissioner and his team.

2.1 Responding to the Public

The Force is one of the most visible and best performing forces in England and Wales across 
many key indicators. We continue to work extremely hard to improve the service we provide, 
against a trend of increasing demand. Our continued efforts to work more closely and 
collaboratively with partners such as the Welsh Ambulance Service Trust and Mid and West 
and South Wales Fire and Rescue, in a Tri Service call centre environment is also helping us to 
manage that demand more efficiently and effectively at the first point of contact. At the start 
of 2017/18 24% of calls were resolved at the first point of contact, which had increased to 
30% at the end of the year.

The increased capability of the technology available to our operational officers (new mobile 
devices and laptops) is also leading further service delivery improvements as the information 
officers require to do their jobs, whilst remaining visible within our communities, becomes 
more readily and easily accessible.  

There are however a number of on-going challenges:

 Funding for initiatives of mutual benefit to partners and of obvious public value is falling 
too often to the Police. The Force is funding the provision of Community Psychiatric 
Nurses in the Public Service Centre to reduce mental health demands on officers. 

 Increasing expectation of digital routes of contact from the public and escalating volumes 
and complexity in the channels that need to be monitored.

 New requirements mean more time of our newest officers (often working in Response 
roles) will be used in addressing the Police Educational Qualification Framework for 
student officers.

2.2 Prevention and Deterrence 

Reducing and preventing crime remains a priority for the Force.  The Force continues to 
maintain good working relationships with its communities and works well with partners 
tackling night time economy issues.  This is evidenced through initiatives such as the Cardiff 
Alcohol Treatment Centre, the Swansea HelpPoint, the “Know the Score” and 
#DrinklessEnjoyMore campaigns. 

Page 32



 

 
5

In order to prevent harm in our communities the Force has run enforcement exercises to fight 
crime and provide public reassurance. The Force has also been recognised for making good 
use of stop/ search powers. 
The Force has maintained its focus on prevention, working with partners on initiatives such 
as understanding how adverse child experience can impact on the lives of young people.  We 
have worked hard to build the foundations for a Citizens in Policing programme, including the 
successful introduction of Police Youth Volunteer Scheme.

There remains a number of challenges for the Force:

 Any potential reduction in funding from the Welsh Government for PCSOs would be 
problematic.  In recent years the funding has been on a ‘flat cash’ basis.

 The threat to funding for the All Wales Schools Liaison Core Programme has been lifted in 
the short-term and we are making a strong case for continuation of the programme after 
the end of the current Comprehensive Spending Review period. 

 Varying support of partner agencies through the Public Service Boards for an integrated 
approach to neighbourhood policing, including supporting the Citizens in Policing 
Programme.

 The sustainability of existing partnership arrangements to reduce and prevent crime as 
funding across sectors is under pressure. 

2.3 Investigations 

The Force aim to resolve incidents at the earliest opportunity. The staff in the Public Service 
Centre have been training to provide an effective service to victims at the first point of 
contact. We manage investigations through a robust tasking process centred on daily tasking 
meetings, allocating the most appropriate resources taking account of complexity and threat, 
risk and harm.  

Nevertheless, there remains a number of challenges for the force:

 The acute shortage of qualified detectives across the organisation. 
 Significant increase in calls to the police, particularly via 101.
 An increase in violent crime, knife crime and serious sexual offences which will impact on 

the investigative capacity of the force.
 The impact of the changes to bail management including those released under 

investigation. 
 The ability of the Force to meet the ever increasing demands from digital evidence as well 

as the ability to meet the pace of change in relation to digital devices.  

2.4 Protecting Vulnerable People 

Protecting the vulnerable is a clear priority for the Force.  To manage the demand the Force 
has created 147 additional posts within its public protection function, and invested in 
community psychiatric nurses in the Public Service Centre, to help those experiencing mental 
health crises.  

Page 33



 

 
6

Effective partnership arrangements are in place to provide support to vulnerable people, 
including the Keep Safe Cymru scheme, our Joint Violence against Women and Girls Strategy, 
and work with Welsh Women’s Aid, BAWSO and Barnardos.  There are also effective Multi-
Agency Hubs serving RCT and Merthyr (Northern BCU), Cardiff (Eastern BCU) and with 
Bridgend Council in Central BCU, providing an efficient and integrated gateway for 
safeguarding referrals.  

The Force is working with partners on identifying adverse childhood experiences and how this 
can prevent crime and reduce demand on all partner agencies. 

The Force recognises there will be challenges in the future regarding:

 The growing impact of County Lines on those who are vulnerable, including young people 
at risk of sexual exploitation.

 The increases in rapes and serious sexual offences and partnership support through 
continued funding for the Sexual Assault Referral Centres.

 The challenges faced by the increasing number of homeless people and the wider street 
community, particularly in Cardiff and Swansea.

 A sustainable partnership approach to supporting vulnerable people, including the Multi 
Agency Safeguarding Hubs throughout the force, mental health triage and adverse 
childhood experiences.

 Continuing to resource the policing support for vulnerability, in tandem with the current 
shortage of detectives. 

 Supporting staff wellbeing in what can be very stressful and demanding roles.

2.5 Managing Offenders 

The Force works with partners to deliver effective offender management services.  We have 
a strong strategic governance arrangement for offender management and Multi Agency 
Public Protection arrangements. New approaches to prevention and offender management 
have been adopted through diversionary schemes for women, children and young adults.  We 
have invested in additional capabilities through programmes to enhance the management of 
sexual and violent offenders as well as other high-risk offenders.

There remains a number of challenges for the Force regarding managing offenders:

 Year on year increases in the numbers of offenders who will require management under 
Multi Agency Public Protection arrangements.

 The corresponding funding pressures generated by necessary increases in offender 
management resources. 

 The Force’s capacity to fully implement the Wales Integrated Serious and Dangerous 
Offender Management (WISDOM) programme.

 The sustainability of diversionary schemes and, in some cases, the lack of cross sector 
support for some initiatives.

Page 34



 

 
7

2.6 Managing Serious and Organised Crime
The four Welsh forces have developed strong collaborative arrangements to meets their 
obligations under the Strategic Policing Requirement in respect of terrorism and organised 
crime. The Force understands the demand posed by serious and organised crime through 
effective Organised Crime Group mapping and robust force and regional tasking 
arrangements.

At a Force and regional level we are tackling, disrupting and dismantling organised crime 
groups as well as individuals engaged in attack planning, extremism and radicalisation.

The Force acknowledges that there are a number of challenges ahead:

 Increased numbers of mapped organised crime groups requiring management as a 
consequence of investment in a Regional Organised Crime Threat Assessment Team 
within TARIAN.

 The growing threat of County Lines trafficking within local communities.
 A corresponding increase in knife related crime and violent crime linked to organised 

crime. 
 The capacity and commitment of some partners to Local Organised Crime Partnership 

Boards. 
 More diverse demand on the Force’s Major Crime Investigation Team.
 The shortages of detectives in Specialist Crime and local Crime Investigation teams. 

2.7 Major Events, Public Orders, Civil Emergence, Terrorism, Armed Policing and Roads 
Policing

The Force has one of the most extensive major events profiles outside London, and with the 
Force’s breadth of expertise and recent experience we are confident of our ability to keep the 
public safe.  We have the public order capability to respond to spontaneous and pre-planned 
operations, as well as supporting the National Police Coordination Centre in discharging 
mutual aid commitments.

The civil contingency arrangements are well established due to robust structures and working 
arrangements amongst emergency services in Wales, along with excellent collaborative 
arrangements with the southern Welsh forces for the regional delivery of armed policing.

Nevertheless, there remains a number of challenges for the force:

 Investigative capability in respect of fatal and serious injury road traffic collisions.
 The volume and scale of major and public events throughout the Force area, which 

translate to greater demand on divisional and specialist resources.
 The changing security landscape and diversification of the terrorist threat, which is 

necessitating the deployment of specialist assets, such as Authorised Firearms Officers, to 
events that previously would not have warranted a policing presence. 

 The financial burden associated with maintaining a high level of specialist capabilities to 
support local and national demand.

Page 35



 

 
8

 The sustainability of year on year increases in mutual aid deployments, which risk 
neglecting force requirements as well as the health and wellbeing of our staff. 

 Projected retirements in the coming years will lead to a depletion of some specialist skills, 
particularly within armed and roads policing and command cadre roles. 

 A corresponding financial burden in order to train officers and staff to meet the projected 
skills gap. 

2.8 Force Wellbeing 

We are determined to support our staff through our health management, attendance and 
wellbeing work, thereby reducing the levels of long term sickness. We are making progress 
but have a long way to go. We have invested in a private medical intervention fund so officers 
and staff can access medical provisions, thereby speeding up their recovery, as well as 
enhancing our occupational health services. 

There remains a number of challenges for the force:

 The continued high level of sickness absence, in particular mental health and 
musculoskeletal related absences.

 The number of officers and staff who are on temporary and permanent restricted duties. 
 Training and development for managers in supporting the wellbeing of their staff. 
 Improve the overall wellbeing of staff across the organisation.

2.9 ICT and Information Management

The Force has adopted a progressive approach to Information Technology and Digital Policing, 
and created a Digital Service Division in collaboration with Gwent Police. The aim of this new 
department is to deliver the digital requirements of both forces, whilst also considering the 
importance of sound Information Management. All police officers and PCSOs have recently 
received new mobile devices and will soon receive new laptops which have been configured 
to significantly reduce the need for officers to return to the station, so being more accessible 
and efficient. 

The Force will have to manage a number of challenges going forward: 

 Concerns surrounding the timely delivery of National Enabling Programmes and, in some 
cases, whether resulting solutions will be as effective or capable as locally developed 
capabilities.

 The recruitment and retention of ICT staff due to market pressures.
 Continuing delays surrounding the introduction of the Emergency Services Network by 

the Home Office. Whilst central funding will cover service coverage costs, existing 
hardware, most notably handsets, are becoming increasingly dated. The interim 
replacement of these devices could cost around £5.2 million should the programme’s 
timeline extend further.

 The impact of the revised General Data Protection Requirement regulations is yet to be 
determined. However, the abolition of fees for subject access requests could increase 

Page 36



 

 
9

demand on the Force’s Information Management function, and generate financial and 
human resource pressures.

2.10 Force-wide functions

The Force has effective corporate functions in place to successfully meet requirements. Its 
change programme aims to ensure we can continue to meet pressing and future demand, 
despite the challenges we face. At the heart of that will be a real focus on our people, their 
health and wellbeing and their Continuous Professional Development. Ensuring the expected 
Force standards are understood and maintained is, as always, of vital importance. To achieve 
this we have invested in proactive capabilities to tackle internal corruption and serious 
misconduct, to better manage complaints, and to engage with our workforce so we are better 
informed about the challenges they face day-to-day.  

The Force has identified some additional challenges for the future:

 Recruitment and retention of staff in technical business areas, most notably finance, legal 
services and ICT. 

 Unresolved funding pressures associated with the Police Education and Qualification 
Framework, as well as additional demands on HR and Learning and Development Services 
due to additional requirements of the framework.

2.11 Finance

A separate report on the very significant current financial pressures and projections is 
included with the papers for the Police and Crime Panel.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Progress on the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy  

Police and Crime Panel
Tuesday 11th December 2018

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



 

 
2

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT TO THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

PROGRESS ON THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019-2023

 DECEMBER 2018
1. BACKGROUND

The Police and Crime Commissioner is required annually to prepare the following documents.  
In South Wales, the Commissioner does this in close co-operation with the Chief Constable: 

 A Police and Crime Plan that sets out the Commissioner’s priorities,
 A Risk Management Strategy; 
 A Medium Term Financial Strategy (Financial Strategy);
 The South Wales Police Treasury Management Strategy;
 An Asset Management Strategy;
 A Capital Programme; and
 An Annual Revenue Budget and Value for Money Plan. 

2. PROGRESS TO DATE

The Police and Crime Commissioner refreshed the Police and Crime Plan a year ago for the 
period 2018-2021 and the Chief Constable’s Delivery Plan 2018-2021 ensures that South 
Wales Police maintains a focus on those areas of work that will make the biggest positive 
difference to the lives of people living in and visiting the South Wales Police area. The panel 
had a presentation on both of these Plans at the October meeting.

For the first time the police service has been asked by Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary 
and Fire and Rescue Services (this latter part being applicable to England only) to prepare a 
forward looking Force Management Statement and a summary is enclosed in a separate 
paper.  The South Wales Force Management Statement is entirely consistent with the Police 
and Crime Plan and the Delivery Plan.

3. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

The Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-2023 is being developed in readiness for the 
Panel’s meeting on the 29th January 2019. It cannot be finalised until the Police Grant 
settlement from the Home Office is received and processed. The Strategy will include all the 
statutory components to enable the Panel to consider the Commissioner’s proposal on 
resourcing the Police and Crime Plan. Members may recall the original assumptions indicated 
a £90million shortfall in funding projected for the period 2011 to 2022 as shown overleaf.

Page 40



 

 
3

Figure A: Table illustrating financial planning assumptions between 2011 and 2022

Financial 
Year

Actual 
Percentage 
Reduction

Actual Cash 
Cuts            
£M

Unfunded 
Pay Awards

Unfunded 
Prices-CPI 

OBR

Impact of 
Unfunded 

Pay & Prices 
£M

Impact of 
Unfunded 

Pay & Prices 
£M

2011/12 -3.8% -9.4 2.6% 3.7% -7.70 7.70
2012/13 -5.5% -12.2 1.1% 4.2% -4.60 4.60
2013/14 -1.9% -2.8 0.0% 2.7% -1.40 1.40
2014/15 -4.8% -8.5 0.6% 2.0% -2.31 2.31
2015/16 -5.1% -8.6 1.0% 0.5% -2.33 2.33
2016/17 -0.6% -0.9 1.0% 2.0% -3.06 3.06
2017/18 -1.4% -2.2 1.0% 1.0% -2.59 2.59
2018/19 0.0% 0.0 2.0% 2.6% -5.57 5.57
2019/20 0.0% 0.0 2.0% 2.2% -5.53 5.53
2020/21 0.0% 0.0 2.0% 2.2% -5.66 5.66
2021/22 0.0% 0.0 2.0% 2.0% -5.68 5.68

Total -23.1% -44.6 15% 25% -46.4 46.4

The current position on the police settlement is that the Home office will see a reduction in 
funding of £100million in 2019-20. This strongly indicates that a flat cash settlement at the 
2017-18 level remains the best outcome we can reasonably hope for, and is the scenario that 
we were indicating in last refresh of the Medium Term Financial Strategy that projected a 
funding shortfall before the police precept of £11.5million in respect of 2019-20. However, a 
number of external factors are increasing the pressure on police as follows:

1. The impacts of the Apprenticeship Levy and the Police Education Qualification 
Framework and uncertainty around future cost recovery for training in the devolved 
context.

2. Increased Employer’s contributions to the unfunded Police Officers Pension Scheme.
3. The unfunded pay awards and other inflationary pressures.
4. Wholly inadequate (capital) infrastructure funding, as the Police Estate ages.
5. The near collapse of the forensic science market.
6. Increased charges on central services such as Police National Computer Systems
7. Increased dependency on technology to manage unprecedented demand on policing.

Members will be aware that South Wales Police has delivered recurring savings of £51million 
and now has fewer police officers than in 1979 despite the changes in the depth, breadth and 
complexity of the modern policing environment.

We have demonstrated Value for Money, which has been verified by Independent Audit 
Opinion and our scarce resources more effectively in reducing crime related harm than our 
most similar group of forces facing a similarly challenging policing environment. 

The table below is a simplified indication of the financial challenges in terms of new 
expenditure and the potential savings and income to help achieve a balanced budget and 
shows a shortfall before precept of £16million. It is clear without additional local funding the 
gap is equivalent to nearly 300 officer posts or 550 police staff posts or a combination of 200 
PCSO’s and 350 police staff, with a predictable detrimental impact on the level of police 
service that could result. The Panel meeting will provide an opportunity to discuss these 
impacts in more detail.

Page 41



 

 
4

Figure B: Table illustrating financial planning assumptions in respect of spending and 
savings 2019/20

New Spend £M New Savings £M
Sustainable Technology 2.0 Estate/Fleet/Procurement 1.0
Chief Constables Delivery Plan 1.0 Apprenticeship Direct Funding 1.0
Occupational Health Investment 0.4 Contact Centre Efficiency 0.4
Mental Health Triage 0.4 Specialist Operations Review 1.0
Pay Awards 7.8 Bilateral Gwent Collaboration 1.0
Vacancy Factor reversal 6.0 New Vacancy Factor 2.0
Inflation and Contract Prices 1.5 Precept - To Be Determined
Police Pensions - Increased Costs 3.7 Potential Financial Support on Pensions

22.8 6.4
1% additional Precept = £1.15m
Unfunded Budget Gap 16.4

`

4. OTHER EXISTING PRESSURES THAT REMAIN UNRESOLVED

Members will be aware from previous detailed briefings on the additional costs of policing 
the Capital City of Wales estimated at £3.0million, which remains unfunded and draws 
resources away from local communities in order to ensure security and safety of the large-
scale events.

The freezing of the funding formula continues to deny the Force £8.8M of annual funding, so 
without a significant increase in police funding envelope it is highly unlikely that a new 
formula will be agreed over the medium term. The Treasury predictions on the economy and 
tax receipts indicate that public spending will remain constrained to 2025.

Recent media reporting (and the precedents of recent years) suggests that central 
government funding is recognised as being inadequate and greater emphasis is being placed 
by the Home Office and HM Treasury on increases in the police precept as a core means for 
sustaining services. The full Medium Term Financial Strategy will describe the careful 
weighing and balancing of these factors that will be necessary to achieve a realistic budget 
for 2019/20.

U Hussain MBE
Y Prif Swyddog Ariannol - Chief Financial Officer
Heddlu de Cymru – South Wales Police

Page 42



 
Police and Partners ACEs Early Action Together Programme: conference review document November 2018 

Partners from the Early Action Together Programme were invited to take part in the 4th Law Enforcement and Public Health (LEPH) conference 
in Toronto during October.  This invitation was a great opportunity, as part of the programme’s Home Office grant condition is that we create 
opportunities for learning and sharing of the work that we’re doing here in Wales.   
As well as providing opportunities for speaking and promoting the work around Policing, Criminal Justice and Public Health here in Wales, the 
conference was also an opportunity for key leads in Wales responsible for transformational change to come together and be immersed in the 
international landscape for Public Health and Policing from both a strategic and practical level.   
 
Full details of presentations at the conference can be found at: https://leph2018toronto.com/ 
 
The aim of attending and taking part in the LEPH conference was to:  

 Present the collaborative work undertaken as part of the Police Innovation Fund South Wales Maesteg pilot and how this has fed in to 
the Early Action Together Programme, a two-year partnership programme, which proposes to gain a better understanding of what’s 
needed to address the lack of early intervention and preventative activity when ACEs are evident and families are at risk of poor 
outcomes, and the associated impact this has on Policing in terms of vulnerability and crime. 

  
The outcomes of the programme attending the conference were:  

 The work taking place here in Wales was represented on an international stage which has provided the organisations taking part with a 
platform to further influence and contribute to international health development. 

 Raising awareness amongst potential future funders and those who could possibly support the sustainability of the programme.   

 Learning opportunities from the lessons of others organisations and strategic leads in implementing transformational change and 
taking a public health approach.  

 The conference enabled us to build a shared vision and approach as to how this can be achieved and taken forwards in Wales.   

 Created new partnerships and opportunities for collaboration internationally, at both a strategic and practical level. 

 Created an international platform for knowledge sharing and research dissemination on ACEs, public health and policing  

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9

https://leph2018toronto.com/


 
 It was clear that the programme is attracting a huge amount of international interest, with international colleagues citing that Wales is 

leading in this area of work.  A key observation from the conference was that Wales appears to be the only country that is 
operationalising the ACEs research, and making changes based on the research and evidence in policing and criminal justice, which is 
what makes the EAT programme so unique.    

 The ACE research was also mentioned in the LEPH Oration which was delivered by Professor Sir Michael Marmot whose presentation 
was entitle: ‘Social justice and health inequalities’. 

 
Conference agenda and speakers 
As a result of the multi-agency work carried out as part of the police innovation fund project: Adverse Childhood Experiences: Breaking the 
generational cycle of crime, the team has been invited to present the knowledge, learning and next steps as a major session and series of 
workshops at the international Law Enforcement and Public Health Conference 2018.  
 
The agenda included:  
Sunday 21/10/18 – The team were invited to attend and present at LEPH Networking meeting 3:00-3:45 pm to present Public Health Wales 
and Welsh Policing MOU and partnership agreement. The aim of this meeting is to begin to build a collaborative global network in this 
emerging field of work. 
 
MONDAY 22 OCTOBER 18 
Preventing and reducing violence: How we developed a routine surveillance and analysis system for early intervention and prevention of 
violence from a multi- agency perspective  
Facilitators: Emma Barton & Dr Michelle McManus, Public Health Wales  
In 2012 South Wales Police set reducing violent crime as a top priority. The effects of violence on individuals are widespread causing poor 
health and well-being while under-reporting violent crime. This session will demonstrate the project that is an example of effective multi 
agency working that has successfully helped to develop a better understanding of violence across South Wales and demonstrating the value of 
sharing data and resources across agencies. The residence of victims and perpetrators of assault were mapped, helping agencies target 
resources at communities most at risk, tackling the root causes of violence. 

P
age 44



 
 
TUESDAY 23 OCTOBER 18 
Presentation :  Why a Public Health approach to policing is vital in the 21st Century:  
Improved understanding of police vulnerability demand has led to a collaborative Public Health approach to policing in Wales, where a multi-
agency Adverse Childhood Experience (ACE)-informed approach is the basis for “early intervention and prompt positive action” and root cause 
prevention.  The session presented an overview incorporating evidence from the Welsh ACE study used as background for this project; various 
research findings that supported its development into a national Welsh programme by using a public health upstream trauma-informed 
approach to understanding vulnerability, reducing harm and crime.  
Chair/Convener: Alun Michael, South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 
Co-Convener: Janine Roderick, Public Health Wales  
 
TUESDAY 23 OCTOBER 18 
Workshop Speakers  

 Janine Roderick, Public Health Wales: Why understanding vulnerability and a public health approach is vital to policing  

 Emma Barton, Public Health Wales: Operationalising the vision: turning understanding in to action  

 Dr Michelle McManus, Public Health Wales/Detective Superintendent Jo Ramessur-Williams, Public Health Wales: Moving forward: 

National roll-out 

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 18  
An opportunity for the delegates to participate in the final day of the conference and to network with other delegates. 
THURSDAY 25 OCTOBER 18  
Networking and informal meetings and return 
 

 
 
 

P
age 45



 
Appendix - attendees and funding of places  
 
Conference presenters  

 Alun Michael (South Wales Police Commissioner funded) 

 Janine Roderick (Public Health Wales EAT Funded) 

 Jo Ramasseur-Williams (South Wales Police funded) 

 Emma Barton (Public Health Wales EAT funded) 

 Michelle McManus (Public Health Wales EAT funded) 
 
Other Delegates attending (funded by own organisation) 

 Emma Wools (South Wales Police, Deputy Commissioner) 

 Martin Swain (Welsh Government) 

 Hannah Griffiths (HMPPS) 

 Joanne Hopkins (Home Office) 
 

P
age 46



UPDATE REPORT TO POLICE & CRIME PANEL

Date 11 December 2018

SUBJECT The Commissioner’s Engagement Strategy 

Submitted by Hannah Jenkins-Jones (Head of Scrutiny & Assurance) 

Summary To provide the panel with the published version of the 
Commissioner’s first Engagement Strategy

 

1. BACKGROUND

In June 2018, the Commissioner’s team began to develop the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s first Engagement Strategy. The aim of developing the strategy was 
to outline why the Commissioner and his team seek to engage with the public and 
partners, outlining the benefits that can be gained through engagement.  It also sought 
to outline the specific engagement activities that would be undertaken by the 
Commissioner and team during the financial year.  The Strategy was launched in the 
autumn of 2018. At the previous Police & Crime Panel meeting there was a request 
from the panel for the Strategy to be provided for information at the next meeting.

2. THE STRATEGY

The Engagement Strategy is attached at Appendix A.  As well as setting out why we 
want to engage with the public and partners, it makes a clear link to our engagement 
work being aligned to the ‘National Principles for Public Engagement in Wales’.  The 
Commissioner signed up to these principles earlier in 2018.  The Strategy outlines 
the key activities that the Commissioner and team aim to conduct by April 2019, by 
which time an amended activity plan will be included in the Strategy for the year 
ahead. Ahead of its launch, the Strategy was Equality Impact Assessed.  Welsh 
Language Standards compliance has also been taken into account throughout.

The Commissioner’s Team has also launched an internal Engagement toolkit to 
enable all members of the Commissioner’s staff to have the practical information 
available to make the best of the Strategy and its implementation. 

3. RECOMMENDATION

The Police & Crime Panel is invited to note the Engagement Strategy and its contents.

Page 47

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Police & Crime Panel Home Office Grant (SJ)
	Appendix 1

	6 Commissioners Update Report
	7 Chief Constables Update Report
	8 Finance paper and presentation
	9 Early Action Together Canada Report
	10 Consultation and engagement strategy

